RECEIVED

Feb 24 2023

SC Court of Appeals

THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
In The SC Court of Appeals

APPEAL FROM CHARLESTON COUNTY
Court of Common Pleas

The Honorable Bentley Price, Circuit Court Judge

Case No. 2017-CP-10-05245
Case No. 2017-CP-10-05246
Appellate Case No. 2022-001187

Gary Keisler, individually and as Class Representative,
John Does (1-50) and Jane Does (1-50), Plaintiff,

v.

(See ensuing pages for continued caption)

APPELLANTS' FINAL BRIEF

Brian C. Duffy (SC I.D. No. 16247)
Blake A. McKie (SC I.D. No. 80198)
DUFFY & YOUNG, LLC
96 Broad Street
Charleston, SC 29401
bduffy@duffyandyoung.com
bmckie@duffyandyoung.com
(843) 720-2044

and

STATEMENT OF ISSUES ON APPEAL

- I. Whether the trial court erred when it ignored binding precedent and granted summary judgment in favor of Defendants Jorge Medina, Jeorge Medina a/k/a JMC Construction, LLC a/k/a JMC Construction, Inc., (hereinafter “JMC”) and All Exteriors Construction, LLC (hereinafter “All Exteriors”) as to cross claims and third-party claims made by RP Falcon Properties, LLC f/k/a JW Homes, LLC, RP Falcon Land, LLC f/k/a JW Land Investment, LLC, RP Falcon Realty, LLC f/k/a Wieland Realty, LLC and Residential Partners, LLC (hereinafter collectively referred to as “RP Companies”).

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

This appeal arises from the granting of JMC and All Exteriors’ Motions for Summary Judgment in two related actions. In 2017, One Hamlin Place Townhome Association, Inc. brought claims seeking damages against numerous defendants, including the RP Companies for alleged construction defects at the One Hamlin Place townhomes located in Mount Pleasant, South Carolina. Similarly, Gary Keisler, a resident of One Hamlin Place, brought purported class action claims against the RP Companies to which the order granting summary judgment applies.

The complaints were amended several times to add additional parties. The RP Companies answered and asserted cross claims against JMC and third-party claims against All Exteriors. Subsequently, RP Companies answered the various amended complaints and asserted the same cross claims and third-party claims.

RP Companies denied liability and asserted cross claims against JMC and third-party claims against All Exteriors for (1) indemnity; (2) negligence; (3) breach of warranty; and (4) breach of contract. (See Ans. ¶¶ 255, 260, 266, 272, 277, R. pp. 0441 - 0446). Motions for Summary Judgment were filed by JMC and All Exteriors as to these claims on March 3, 2022.

On April 18, 2022, the trial court heard arguments on, and granted, JMC and All Exteriors Motions for Summary Judgment. (See Transcript of Hearing, dated April 18, 2022, R. pp. 1682 - 1698); Form 4 Order Granting Mot. Summ. Judgment, dated April 22, 2022, R. pp. 0001 - 0003;

Order Granting Mot. Summ. Judgment, dated May 10, 2022, R. pp. 0004 - 0016. The RP Companies moved the trial court to reconsider, or in the alternative, for relief under Rule 59(e) of the South Carolina Rules of Civil Procedure. See Mot. Recons., dated May 2, 2022, R. pp. 1128 - 1251 (Keisler); and Mot. Recons., dated May 18, 2022, R. pp. 1539 - 1681 (One Hamlin). On July 28, 2022, the trial court denied the RP Companies' motion to reconsider without a hearing. See Order Den. Mot. Recons., dated July 28, 2022, R. pp. 30, 31. On August 24, 2022, the RP Companies served a notice of appeal of both of the trial court's orders. The RP Companies now seek this Court's reversal of the trial court's decision.

The RP Companies moved this court to amend the caption in this matter on September 7, 2022, and an Order was entered on September 22, 2022, granting the motion and providing the proper caption to be used in this appeal.

FACTS

These construction defect matters arise out of the construction of eleven townhome buildings located in Mount Pleasant, South Carolina known as One Hamlin Place (hereinafter "One Hamlin"). RP Falcon Properties, LLC f/k/a JW Homes, LLC ("JW Homes") served as the general contractor for the construction of buildings five through eleven at One Hamlin Place (hereinafter collectively referred to, for convenience and purposes of this Initial Brief and underlying motions and memoranda only, as "One Hamlin Phase II"). The Certificates of Occupancy ("CO") for One Hamlin Phase II were issued between April 23, 2013 and November 25, 2014 and identify JW Homes or JW Homes, LLC as the contractor. See Ex. A in Appellants' Memo. in Opp. to Mot. Summ. Judgment, R. pp. 0871 – 0896. The COs for Buildings one through four of One Hamlin were issued between August 5, 2009 and April 5, 2012 and identify John

Wieland Homes & Neighborhood of the Carolinas as the contractor. See Ex. B. in Appellants' Memo. In Opp. To Mot. Summ. Judgment, R. pp. 0897 - 0912.

Plaintiffs filed this action against RP Companies¹, among others, alleging deficiencies in the construction of the townhomes at One Hamlin. RP Companies answered the Plaintiffs' complaints in both matters denying liability and filing crossclaims and third-party complaints seeking indemnity from various subcontractors who performed the work at One Hamlin Phase II, alleging that these subcontractors must indemnify RP Companies if and to the extent that RP Companies are found liable to Plaintiffs for damages relating to the subcontractors' work.

JMC was a subcontractor who performed work at Buildings 5 and 6 at One Hamlin Phase II, including, but not limited to, the installation of siding. See Exhibit C in Appellants' Memo. in Opp. to Mot. Summ. Judgment, R. pp. 0913 - 0931. All Exteriors was a subcontractor who performed work at buildings 7 through 11 at One Hamlin Phase II, including, but not limited to, the installation of siding. See Exhibit C in Appellants' Memo. in Opp. to Mot. Summ. Judgment, R. pp. 1083 - 1111.

STANDARD OF REVIEW

Rule 56(c) of the South Carolina Rules of Civil Procedure provides the circuit court shall grant summary judgment if "there is no genuine issue as to any material fact and . . . the moving party is entitled to a judgment as a matter of law." When the circuit court grants summary judgment on a question of law, the appellate court reviews the ruling de novo. *Town of Summerville*

¹ Plaintiffs allege a theory of amalgamation against JW Homes and other entities, including the RP Companies, relating to a series of transactions that occurred between 2009 through 2012. Plaintiffs claim that these entities and a number of others are amalgamated and that for purposes of any judgment that may be rendered in favor of the Plaintiffs, these entities should be treated as a single business enterprise. Therefore, while RP Falcon Properties, LLC f/k/a JW Homes, LLC was the general contractor for One Hamlin Phase II, for the purposes of the underlying motions for summary judgment and this appeal, RP Falcon Properties, LLC f/k/a JW Homes, LLC, RP Falcon Land, LLC, f/k/a JW Land Investment, LLC, RP Falcon Realty, LLC, f/k/a Wieland Realty, LLC, and Residential Partners, LLC (the "RP Companies") are each entitled to pursue indemnity to the extent that Plaintiffs prove they are amalgamated.

v. City of N. Charleston, 378 S.C. 107, 110, 662 S.E.2d 40, 41 (2008). "In determining whether any triable issue of fact exists, the evidence and all inferences which can reasonably be drawn therefrom must be viewed in the light most favorable to the nonmoving party." *Quail Hill, LLC v. Cnty. of Richland*, 387 S.C. 223, 235, 692 S.E.2d 499, 505 (2010) (citation omitted). "However, it is not sufficient for a party to create an inference that is not reasonable or an issue of fact that is not genuine." *Town of Hollywood v. Floyd*, 403 S.C. 466, 477, 744 S.E.2d 161, 166 (2013).

ARGUMENT

I. THE TRIAL COURT ERRED WHEN IT IGNORED BINDING PRECEDENT AND GRANTED SUMMARY JUDGMENT

The trial court erred by ignoring binding South Carolina precedent and the questions of fact inherent in the RP Companies claims for equitable indemnification against JMC and All Exteriors.

The trial court was presented with the issue of whether a general contractor could pursue a claim for equitable indemnity against a subcontractor whose work allegedly caused damage to a homeowner. In the Order on appeal, the trial court decided that the general contractor could not pursue such a claim. This Court, however, had already established that a general contractor may in fact do so. *Stoneledge at Lake Keowee v. Clear View Construction, LLC. et al.*, 413 S.C. 615, 776 SE 2d 426 (Ct. App. 2015).

The RP Companies have standing to assert equitable indemnity claims because “[a] general contractor's relationship with its subcontractor in the residential construction context is sufficient to support the general contractor's right of equitable indemnity against the subcontractor.” *Stoneledge at Lake Keowee v. Clear View Construction, LLC. et al.*, 413 S.C. 615, 776 SE 2d 426 (Ct. App. 2015).

“To recover damages on its equitable indemnity claim, [the general contractor] must prove the following: (1) [the subcontractor] was at fault in causing [the homeowner’s] water intrusion damages; (2) [the general contractor] has no fault for those damages; and (3) [the general contractor] incurred expenses that were necessary to protect its interest in defending against [the homeowner’s] claim.”

Id.

In *Stoneledge*, the Court of Appeals held that as a matter of law, a general contractor does not necessarily share in the fault of defective work put in place by its subcontractors, and therefore, is able to recover from a subcontractor under a claim for equitable indemnity. Id.; See also *Fields v. J. Haynes Waters Builders, Inc.* 376 S.C. 545, 560, 658 S.E.2d 80,89 (2008) (A general contractor is not automatically responsible for the negligence of a subcontractor).

Genuine issues of material fact exist as to whether, and to what extent, the RP Companies are entitled to recover indemnity from JMC and All Exteriors for their work at One Hamlin Phase II. JW Homes did not self-perform the construction at One Hamlin Phase II. See Ex. D in Appellants’ Memo. in Opp. to Mot. Summ. Judgment, R. pp. 0932 - 0935. Instead, it paid subcontractors, such as JMC and All Exteriors, to perform the construction, including the work at One Hamlin Phase II claimed to be deficient in this suit. (*Id.* and Ex. C R. pp. 0913 – 0931). While the RP Companies deny Plaintiffs’ claims, Plaintiffs seek damages from the RP Companies for JMC and All Exteriors’ work at One Hamlin Phase II. Among other things, JMC installed the siding at Buildings 5 and 6, while All Exteriors installed the siding at Buildings 7, 8, 9, 10 and 11. See Ex. C in Appellants’ Memo. in Opp. to Mot. Summ. Judgment, R. pp. 0913- 0931. Plaintiffs contend there are deficiencies with the installation of the siding at those buildings. Specifically, Plaintiffs’ experts claim as defective and call for the complete removal and replacement of the siding installed by JMC and All Exteriors. See Memo. in Opp. to Mot. Summ. Judgment, R. pp. 0863 - 0947. This evidence is more than enough to satisfy the RP Companies’ burden of introducing a “mere scintilla of evidence.” See *Savannah Bank, N.A. v. Stalliard*, 400 S.C. 246,

734 S.E.2d 161 (2012) (“To withstand a motion for summary judgment in cases applying the preponderance of the evidence, burden of proof, the non-moving party is only required to submit a mere scintilla of evidence.”).

Accordingly, because the RP Companies, much like the general contractor in *Stoneledge*, can prove at trial that they do not necessarily share in the fault of the alleged defective siding installation performed by JMC and All Exteriors, genuine issues of material fact exist as to whether, and to what extent, the RP Companies can recover indemnity from JMC and All Exteriors. This factual dispute will not be resolved until trial when Plaintiffs’ claims against the RP Companies, and the RP Companies’ indemnity claims against its subcontractors, are heard and resolved.

For the trial court to rule otherwise was improper and in direct conflict with the case law created by this Court as well as the South Carolina Rules of Civil Procedure.

II. APPELLANTS’ OTHER CAUSES OF ACTION WERE IMPROPERLY DISMISSED

If RP Companies prove that they are without fault for the work completed by JMC and All Exteriors, then they are also entitled to have the factfinder hear the other causes of action that have been pled.

RP Companies clearly presented a scintilla of evidence warranting a determination by the factfinder on RP Companies’ claims for breach of contract, breach of warranty, and negligence against both JMC and All Exteriors. It is clear from the record that JMC and All Exteriors performed some of the work the Plaintiffs claim to be deficient. If Plaintiffs successfully prove their allegations and the work JMC and All Exteriors performed is found to be deficient, JMC and All Exteriors will have breached the implied warranty of workmanlike service, committed negligence in the scope of their work, and to the extent the RP Companies are able to prove the

existence of a contract through a course of dealing and/or a contract implied in law, they will be in breach of its contract with the RP Companies.

In reviewing the record of the trial court and viewing the evidence in the light most favorable to the Appellants – the record contains conflicting evidence where a factfinder could conclude RP Companies was not at fault. As a result, the trial court’s decision granting summary judgment in favor of the subcontractor was improper and should be reversed.

CONCLUSION

For the foregoing reasons, this Court should reverse the trial court’s Order granting JMC and All Exteriors’ Motions for Summary Judgment.