RECEIVED

Mar 14 2023

SC Court of Appeals

THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
In the SC Court of Appeals

APPEAL FROM CHARLESTON COUNTY
Court of Common Pleas

The Honorable Bentley Price, Circuit Court Judge

Case No. 2017-CP-10-05245
Case No. 2017-CP-10-05246
Appellate Case No. 2022-001187

Gary Keisler, individually and as Class Representative,
John Does (1-50) and Jane Does (1-50), Plaintiff,

v.

(See proceeding pages for continued caption)

RESPONDENTS' FINAL BRIEF

s/ James Williams

James L. Williams, Esquire
jwilliams@collinsandlacy.com
SC Bar No. 102408
Collins & Lacy, P.C.
Post Office Box 12487
Columbia, SC 29211
(803) 256-2660

ATTORNEYS FOR RESPONDENTS

STATEMENT OF ISSUES ON APPEAL

- I. DID THE TRIAL COURT ERR WHEN IT DISMISSED APPELLANTS' NEGLIGENCE, BREACH OF WARRANTY, AND BREACH OF CONTRACT CAUSES OF ACTION AGAINST RESPONDENTS BY FINDING THEY WERE MERELY DISGUISED CLAIMS FOR EQUITABLE INDEMNITY?

- II. DID THE TRIAL COURT ERR WHEN IT DISMISSED APPELLANTS' EQUITABLE INDEMNITY CAUSE OF ACTION AGAINST RESPONDENTS BY FINDING APPELLANTS COULD NOT PROVE THEY HAD UNCLEAN HANDS?

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

This appeal arises from the granting of Respondents Jorge Medina, Jorge Medina a/k/a JMC Construction, LLC a/k/a JMC Construction, Inc.'s (hereafter "JMC") and All Exteriors Construction, LLC's (hereafter "All Exteriors") (collectively hereafter "Respondents") Motions for Summary Judgment in two related actions regarding Appellants RP Falcon Properties, LLC f/k/a JW Homes, LLC, RP Falcon Land, LLC f/k/a JW Land Investment, LLC, RP Falcon Realty, LLC f/k/a Wieland Realty, LLC, and Residential Partners, LLC's (collectively hereafter "RP Companies" or "Appellants") crossclaims and third-party claims against Respondents, following Respondents settlement with Plaintiffs.

Plaintiffs filed their original summonses and complaints for One Hamlin Place Townhome Association, Inc. v. John Wieland, et al., C/A No. 2017-CP-10-5245 (the "HOA Action") and Keisler v. John Wieland, et al., C/A No. 2017-CP-10-5246 (the "Class Action") on October 12, 2017. Plaintiffs in the HOA Action asserted claims against all or some of the named defendants sounding in (1) violation of the South Carolina Unfair Trade Practices Act, (2) breach of implied warranties, (3) breach of implied warranty of fitness of habitability, (4) breach of implied warranty of fitness for a particular purpose, (5) breach of implied warranties as to the project's development

and construction, (6) negligence, (7) negligent misrepresentation, (8) breach of fiduciary duty, (9) alter ego liability and piercing the corporate veil, (10) strict liability, (11) individual liability as to the Developer defendants, (12) amalgamation, (13) civil conspiracy, and (14) fraudulent conveyances. The Plaintiff in the Class Action asserted the same causes of action and asserted that the matter was proper for class certification. Plaintiffs amended the HOA Action and the Class Action complaints on January 17, 2018, and again on January 30, 2019. The third-amended complaint in the Class Action was filed November 11, 2020. Generally, each amended pleading revised the number of defendants that the Plaintiffs in both actions were listing in the captions.

The Appellants filed an amended answer to the Class Plaintiff's Third-Amended Complaint and renewed its cross claims against JMC and third-party claims against All Exteriors on December 3, 2020. Under both the cross claims and third-party claims, the RP Companies asserted claims for (1) indemnity; (2) negligence; (3) breach of warranty; (4) breach of contract. They also asserted a claim for (5) strict liability/products liability against a window manufacturer. JMC and All Exteriors answered on December 4, 2020.

JMC, in conjunction with All Exteriors, agreed to a settlement number with the Plaintiffs at the second mediation. Respondents asked Appellants to voluntarily dismiss their cross claims against Respondents, but Appellants would not agree. Therefore, Respondents filed its motions and memoranda of law asking the court to grant summary judgment.

On April 18, 2022, the trial court heard arguments on, and granted, Respondents' motions for summary judgment. See Transcript of Hearing, dated April 18, 2022, R. pp. 1682 - 1698; Form 4 Order Granting Mot. Summ. Judgment, dated April 22, 2022, R. pp. 1 - 3; Orders Granting Mot. Summ. Judgment, dated May 10, 2022, R. pp. 4 - 17. Appellants then moved for the trial court to reconsider, or in the alternative, for relief under Rule 59(e) of the South Carolina Rules of Civil

Procedure. See Mot. Recons., dated May 2, 2022 (Keisler), R. pp. 1128 - 1251; See Mot. Recons., dated May 2, 2022 (One Hamlin), R. pp. 1252 - 1395; See Mot. Recons., dated May 18, 2022 (Keisler), R. pp. 1396 - 1539; and Mot. Recons., dated May 18, 2022 (One Hamlin), R. pp. 1539 - 1681. On July 28, 2022, the trial court denied Appellants' motion to reconsider. See Order Den. Mot. Recons., dated July 28, 2022. Appellants' appeal followed.

STANDARD OF REVIEW

Summary judgment is appropriate where “the pleadings, depositions, answers to interrogatories, and admissions on file, together with the affidavits, if any, show that there is no genuine issue as to any material fact and that the moving party is entitled to a judgment as a matter of law.” S.C. R. Civ. P. 56(c). “Under Rule 56(c), the party seeking summary judgment has the initial responsibility of demonstrating the absence of a genuine issue of material fact.” Baughman v. Am. Tel. & Tel. Co., 306 S.C. 101, 115, 410 S.E.2d 537, 545 (1991). “With respect to an issue upon which the nonmoving party bears the burden of proof, this initial responsibility ‘may be discharged by “showing”—that is, pointing out to the [trial] court—that there is an absence of evidence to support the nonmoving party’s case.’” Id. (quoting Celotex Corp. v. Catrett, 477 U.S. 317, 325 (1986)).

“Once moving party carries its initial burden, opposing party must, under Rule 56(e), do more than simply show that there is some metaphysical doubt as to the material facts but must come forward with specific facts showing that there is a genuine issue for trial.” Id. (internal quotation marks and citation omitted; emphasis added). Indeed, Rule 56(e) specifically prohibits the nonmoving party from resting upon the mere allegations or denials of its pleadings. Id. Specifically, “[o]nce the party moving for summary judgment meets the initial burden of showing an absence of evidentiary support for the opponent's case, the opponent cannot simply rest on mere

allegations or denials contained in the pleadings. Rather, the nonmoving party must come forward with specific facts showing there is a genuine issue for trial.” Miller v. Blumenthal Mills, Inc., 365 S.C. 204, 220, 616 S.E.2d 722, 730 (Ct. App. 2005) (emphasis added) (citing Regions Bank v. Schmauch, 354 S.C. 648, 582 S.E.2d 432 (Ct. App. 2003); Rife v. Hitachi Constr. Mach. Co., Ltd., 363 S.C. 209, 241, 609 S.E.2d 565, 568 (Ct. App. 2005)).

“In cases applying the preponderance of the evidence burden of proof, the non-moving party is only required to submit a mere scintilla of evidence in order to withstand a motion for summary judgment. Nevertheless, when the evidence is susceptible of only one reasonable interpretation, summary judgment may be granted.” Holmes v. E. Cooper Community Hosp., Inc., 408 S.C. 138, 154, 758 S.E.2d 483, 492 (2014).

“The purpose of summary judgment is to expedite disposition of cases which do not require the services of a fact finder.” George v. Fabri, 345 S.C. 440, 452, 548 S.E.2d 868, 874 (2001). “[S]ummary judgment is completely appropriate when a properly supported motion sets forth facts that remain undisputed or are contested in a deficient manner.” David v. McLeod Reg'l Med Ctr., 367 S.C. 242, 250, 626 S.E.2d 1, 5 (2006) (emphasis added).

FACTS

This is a construction defect lawsuit involving eleven (11) buildings that comprise the One Hamlin Plantation Townhomes (hereinafter the “One Hamlin Townhomes”) which are located on the streets of Amenity Park Drive and Monhegan Way in Mount Pleasant, Charleston County, South Carolina. RP Companies were the developer and general contractor for the construction of Buildings 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, and 11 at the One Hamlin Townhomes. Buildings 1 through 4 were completed between August 2009 and April 2012 and Buildings 5 through 11 were completed between April 2013 and November 2014.

No written contract between the Appellants and either Respondents has been produced. Based on invoices, Respondents performed various work on the subject property as a subcontractor to Appellants.

ARGUMENT

I. THE TRIAL COURT PROPERLY DISMISSED APPELLANTS' NEGLIGENCE, BREACH OF WARRANTY, AND BREACH OF CONTRACT CAUSES OF ACTION AGAINST RESPONDENTS BY FINDING THEY WERE MERELY DISGUISED CLAIMS FOR EQUITABLE INDEMNITY.

Appellants argue their negligence, breach of warranty, and breach of contract causes of action against Respondents were improperly dismissed because they may be able to prove at trial that Respondents were without fault for any defects with the work completed by Respondents. Appellants acknowledge there is no written contract with either Respondents. For the reasons disused in the second argument section below. Appellants cannot prove they were without any fault. Further, Appellants do not even address the trial court's finding that these crossclaims are merely disguised claims for equitable indemnity.

In South Carolina, breach of contract, breach of warranty, and negligence claims should be dismissed, if those causes of action are not independent from equitable indemnity claims asserted by the same party. See Stoneledge at Lake Keowee Owners' Ass'n, Inc. v. Builders FirstSource-Se. Grp., 413 S.C. 630, 639, 776 S.E.2d 434, 439 (Ct. App. 2015) (finding the circuit court properly granted summary judgment on the appellant's breach of contract and breach of warranty cross-claims because they were not independent causes of action from the appellant's equitable indemnity claim); Stoneledge at Lake Keowee Owners' Ass'n, Inc. v. Clear View Constr., LLC, 413 S.C. 615, 624, 776 S.E.2d 426, 431 (Ct. App. 2015) (finding the circuit court properly granted summary judgment on the appellant's negligence cross-claim because it was not an independent cause of action from the appellant's equitable indemnity claim).

Appellants make no argument that their breach of contract, breach of warranty, and negligence claims are independent of their equitable indemnity claim. Therefore, the trial court properly dismissed Appellants causes of action against Respondents for breach of contract, breach of warranty, and negligence.

II. THE TRIAL COURT PROPERLY DISMISSED APPELLANTS' EQUITABLE INDEMNITY CAUSE OF ACTION AGAINST RESPONDENTS BY FINDING APPELLANTS COULD NOT PROVE THEY HAD UNCLEAN HANDS.

Appellants argue that the trial court erred in dismissing its equitable indemnity claims against Respondents because a general contractor can pursue such a claim against a subcontractor whose defective work damaged a plaintiff all the way to a jury verdict and cite in support of their argument, Stoneledge at Lake Keowee Owners' Ass'n, Inc. v. Clear View Constr., LLC, 413 S.C. 615, 776 S.E.2d 426 (Ct. App. 2015). Respondents agree that a general contractor can bring an equitable indemnity cause of action in such a situation, but the general contractor still must prove it is without fault, especially after the subcontractor, as in this case, showed in its memoranda and oral arguments that the general contractor does in fact have fault.

To recover damages on its equitable indemnity claim, [the general contractor] must prove the following: (1) [the subcontractor] was at fault in causing [the homeowner's] water intrusion damages; (2) [the general contractor] has no fault for those damages; and (3) [the general contractor] incurred expenses that were necessary to protect its interest in defending against [the homeowner's] claim.

Id. at 625.

Appellants argue South Carolina law entitles a general contractor to take an equitable indemnity claim against a subcontractor all the way to a jury, if it can satisfy the first and third elements identified in Stoneledge. This argument assumes only a jury may resolve the second element which requires the equitable indemnity claimant to have no fault. However, Respondents presented arguments and evidence in support of its motion for summary judgment which showed

Appellants could not prove they were without fault. In their supporting memoranda of law and oral arguments, Respondents showed Appellants did in fact have fault by presenting testimony and written reports from Appellants' own experts demonstrating that Appellants bear at least some responsibility for Respondents' work and that there are construction defects at the subject property which require repair. After Respondents were able to make this showing, Appellants were then required to present some evidence that they could prove to a jury they were indeed without fault. However, Appellants failed to present any such evidence to the trial court, and now again fail to present such evidence.

Because Respondents presented evidence that Appellants did have some fault in its role as general contractor during the construction of the subject property and Appellants failed to present any evidence or arguments to the contrary, the trial court properly dismissed Appellants equitable indemnity cause of action.

CONCLUSION

For the foregoing reasons, this Court should affirm the trial court's Order granting Respondents Motions for Summary Judgment.